
EVANSTON PUBLIC LIBRARY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
LIBRARY BOARD PACKET
April 20, 2022

6:30 pm

In Person (Main Library, Community Meeting Room)  and Remote Meeting

1



 

1703 Orrington Avenue Evanston, IL 60201                     847.448.8650                    EPL.ORG 

 

Remote Access Information 

The Board of Trustees of the Evanston Public Library will hold its monthly meeting remotely. 

There are two ways to access the meeting, and it’s pretty simple: on your computer or a phone.  

Evanston Public Library is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 

Topic: EPL Board Meeting 

Time: April 20, 2022 06:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87109056773 
 

+1 312 626 6799(Chicago) is the closest number. 
  
The full list of US numbers: 
 
+1 3126266799 (Chicago) 
+1 6465588656 (New York) 
+1 3017158592 (Washington D.C.) 
+1 3462487799 (Houston) 
+1 6699009128 (San Jose) 
+1 2532158782 (Tacoma)  
 
 
Please sign up to provide public comment by phone or video during the meeting by completing 
this google form: https://forms.gle/ENo3s6XsH1X1pRdu5 
 

Zoom Tips 

• Proper etiquette for virtual meetings is to mute your microphone unless you are talking. This 
makes it much easier for everyone else to hear and eliminates background noise. 

• If you are connecting with a computer, your microphone is automatically muted.  

• If you are connecting with a phone, please mute your audio. 

• This meeting will be recorded (video and audio) as required by law. 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87109056773
https://forms.gle/ENo3s6XsH1X1pRdu5


 
EVANSTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Wednesday, April 20, 2022 
Meeting of the Board 

 6:30 PM 
In person and remote 

Members of the public are invited to provide comments in-person during the Public Comment portion of the meeting 
or by submitting written comments in advance via the following link: https://forms.gle/ENo3s6XsH1X1pRdu5 Written 
comments will be attached to the Board minutes and distributed to Trustees. 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
2. CITIZEN COMMENT 

Not to exceed 45 minutes 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

Approval of Minutes March  16, 2022 
Approval of Bills and Payroll 

4. INFORMATION/COMMUNICATIONS: Together, We are the Library 
A. Proclamation - Mary Kling 
B. Digitization project (Heather Norborg and Jeff Garrett (Presentation and  Discussion) 
C. MOU with Partners of the Evanston Public Library (Wynn Shawver)  (Discussion) 
D. Library card renewal and data collection update (Tim Longo) (Discussion) 

5. EQUITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION 
A. Racial Equity Task Force (Distributed in Advance) 

6. BOARD PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
7. LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT (Distributed in Advance) 

Includes updates from staff Liaisons. 
8. STAFF REPORTS 

Administrative Services Report (Distributed in Advance) 
9. BOARD REPORTS 

A. Development and Re-imagine Committee 
B. Endowment Investment Committee  
C. Executive Committee 
D. Facilities Committee - Main Library Ventilation Fan Upgrade Bid 22-07 (Discussion and 

Action) 
E. Management & Policy Committee 
F. Development Committee  

YWCA Training (Discussion of Meet Up Observations) 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Appointment of Nominating Committee  
B.  Non-Resident Card Fee Card Change(For Discussion and action) 
C. Bookmobile consultant (For Discussion and Action) 
D. Strategic goals for the board for the year 

 
12. EXECUTIVE SESSION (Personnel) 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Next Meeting: May 18, 2022 at 6:30 pm: In person and remote 
The City of Evanston and the Evanston Public Library are committed to ensuring accessibility for all citizens. If an 
accommodation is needed to participate in this meeting, please contact the Library at 847-448-8650 or TDD/TTY number 
847-866-5095 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so that arrangements can be made for the accommodation if 
possible. 

 

https://forms.gle/ENo3s6XsH1X1pRdu5
https://forms.gle/ENo3s6XsH1X1pRdu5


draft

Members Present
Tracy Fulce, Adam Goodman, Rachel Hayman, Shawn Iles, Margaret Lurie, Benjamin
Schapiro, Russ Shurbet,Terry Soto and Esther Wallen.

Members Absent
none

Staff Present
Dennis Leaks, Elizabeth Bird,  Karen Danczak Lyons, Heather Norborg, Jan Bojda, Jenette
Sturges, Jill Skwerski, John Devaney, Tim Longo, Renee Neumeier, Tyler Works and Wynn
Shawver.

Presiding Member
Tracy Fulce, President

Call to order/Declaration of Quorum
President Fulce called the meeting to order when a quorum of Trustees was established at
6:32 p.m.

Citizen Comment
None.
Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Bills and Payroll and Minutes of the March 16, 2022 Board
Meeting. Upon motion made by Trustee Schapiro and seconded by Trustee Hayman,
the consent agenda was approved.

INFORMATION/COMMUNICATIONS
A. FOIA/OMA review (Alexandra B. Ruggie, Assistant City Attorney, Law Department)

Equity, Diversity and Inclusion (Joint Task Force):
A. Racial Equity Task Force (Distributed in Advance)

BOARD PRESIDENT’S REPORT
Policy Review

Library Director’s Report
Written report provided in advance.

1



draft

Staff Report: 
A. Administrative Services Report (Distributed in Advance).

Board Committee Reports:
A. Development and Re-imagine Committee
B. Endowment Investment Committee
C. Executive Committee
D. Facilities Committee
E. Management & Policy Committee
F. Board Development Committee

Upcoming YWCA Equity Institute training

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. Collections Policy (Betsy Bird) (Discussion and Action)

Upon motion made by Trustee Schapiro and seconded by Trustee Lurie, the library’s
revised Collection Policy by unanimous voice vote.

B. Gift Acceptance Policy (Wynn Shawver) (Discussion and Action)
Upon motion made by Trustee Schapiro and seconded by Trustee Lurie, the library’s
revised Gift Acceptance Policy by unanimous voice vote.

C. ECF Memorandum of Understanding (Discussion and Action)
To amend the Evanston Community Foundation Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) by referring to the 3/16/22 companion letter about recovery of
funds and by correcting the typo in section six that edits “without” to “withhold its
consent” and then approves the corrected MOU.

Upon motion made by Trustee Schapiro and seconded by Trustee Lurie, to accept the
transfer of funds to the Evanston Community Foundation by unanimous voice vote.

D. Volunteer Efforts 2021 continued (Mary Kling)

New Business:
A. Vaccination mandate (Discussion)
B. Closed Session - Personnel (Library Director Evaluation and Contract)

EXECUTIVE SESSION
The motion to move into Executive Session was made by Trustee Iles, seconded by Trustee
Schapiro, and approved by roll call vote. The meeting started at 7:40 pm

The motion to end the Executive Session was made by Trustee Hayman, seconded by
Trustee Lurie, and approved by roll call vote. The meeting was adjourned at 10:24 p.m.

Adjournment
The motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Lurie and seconded by Trustee Fulce and
approved by voice vote. The meeting adjourned at 10:25 p.m.

Submitted by: Terry Soto

2



Agenda Item 3B 

 
 

To:  Evanston Public Library Board of Trustees 
  Karen Danczak Lyons, Executive Director 
 
From:  Lea Hernandez-Solis, Office Coordinator 
  Tera Davis, Accounts Payable Coordinator 
 
Subject: Library Fund Bills 
 
Date:  April 13, 2022 

 
 
Recommended Action 
Staff and the Finance Committee recommend Library Board approval of the Library 
Payroll and Fund bills list. 
 
Payroll 
February 28, 2022 through March 13, 2022   $   169,252.18 
March 14, 2022 through March 27, 2022    $   138,134.80 
March 28, 2022 through April 10, 2022    $   170,079.66 
 
Library Fund Bills List        
March 29, 2022       $      39,164.68 
 
Attachement: Bills List 
 

 

Memorandum 



Vendor G/L Date Payment Date Invoice Amount

14226 -  LINCOLNWOOD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 140.00
Invoice Transactions 1 $140.00

100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 613.17
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 47.33
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 366.51
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 .74
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 670.71
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 521.67

Invoice Transactions 6 $2,220.13

103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 241.14
Invoice Transactions 1 $241.14
Invoice Transactions 8 $2,601.27

100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 420.86
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 1,639.92
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 773.39
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 283.55
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 700.06
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 209.31
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 431.72
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 1,567.66

Invoice Transactions 8 $6,026.47

101332 -  DAILY HERALD 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 98.00
Invoice Transactions 1 $98.00

100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 87.82
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 26.49
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 66.48
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 69.08
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 158.81
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 54.48
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 85.71
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 87.96
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 35.59
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 466.96
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 44.97
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 18.24
103424 -  MIDWEST TAPE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 328.24

Invoice Transactions 13 $1,530.83
Invoice Transactions 22 $7,655.30

12736 -  ILLINOIS HEARTLAND LIBRARY SYSTEM 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 35.25
Invoice Transactions 1 $35.25
Invoice Transactions 1 $35.25

100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 74.49
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 28.40
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 1,251.58
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 10.73
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 89.48
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 49.17
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 52.55

Invoice Transactions 7 $1,556.40
Invoice Transactions 7 $1,556.40

100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 105.33
100474 -  BAKER & TAYLOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 10.16

Invoice Transactions 2 $115.49
Invoice Transactions 2 $115.49

151986 -  CINTAS CORPORATION  #769 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 108.05
298493 -  CONQUEST PEST SOLUTIONS 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 145.00
12896 -  MC SALES COMPANY 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 2,277.00

Invoice Transactions 3 $2,530.05

10730 -  MC SQUARED ENERGY 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 126.25
10730 -  MC SQUARED ENERGY 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 7,537.68

Invoice Transactions 2 $7,663.93

103744 -  NICOR 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 786.03
Invoice Transactions 1 $786.03
Invoice Transactions 6 $10,980.01

102499 -  ILLINOIS DEPT OF REVENUE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 47.00
Invoice Transactions 1 $47.00

10460 -  ANCEL,GLINK,DIAMOND,BUSH,DICIANNI & KRAFTHEFER, P. 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 345.00
17331 -  FRIENDS OF ST PAUL LIBRARY DBA LIBRARY STRATEGIES 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 1,000.00
17331 -  FRIENDS OF ST PAUL LIBRARY DBA LIBRARY STRATEGIES 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 400.00
17331 -  FRIENDS OF ST PAUL LIBRARY DBA LIBRARY STRATEGIES 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 250.00
17331 -  FRIENDS OF ST PAUL LIBRARY DBA LIBRARY STRATEGIES 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 200.00
17331 -  FRIENDS OF ST PAUL LIBRARY DBA LIBRARY STRATEGIES 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 1,100.00
11582 - MARY KLING 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 1,945.42
16999 -  STEPHEN B. STARR DESIGN, INC. 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 105.00

Invoice Transactions 8 $5,345.42

14818 -  FISHEYE GRAPHIC SERVICES, INC. 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 250.00
Invoice Transactions 1 $250.00

103883 -  OFFICE DEPOT 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 29.99
103883 -  OFFICE DEPOT 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 43.75
206940 -  ULINE 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 104.80

Invoice Transactions 3 $178.54
Invoice Transactions 13 $5,820.96

18669 -  OLUWAPELUMI  OMIDIJI 03/29/2022 03/29/2022 400.00
Invoice Transactions 1 $400.00
Invoice Transactions 1 $400.00
Invoice Transactions 60 $29,164.68

Invoice Transactions 60 $29,164.68
* = Prior Fiscal Year Activity Invoice Transactions 60 $29,164.68

Business Unit 4805 - EARLY LEARNING & LITERACY
Account 65100 - LIBRARY SUPPLIES

AUTHOR VISIT 4/21 WE MOVE TOGETHER
Account 65100 - LIBRARY SUPPLIES Totals

Invoice Description

Fund 185 - LIBRARY FUND
Department 48 - LIBRARY

JUV AV
Account 65641 - AUDIO VISUAL COLLECTIONS Totals

Business Unit 4805 - EARLY LEARNING & LITERACY Totals

JUV PRINT
JUV PRINT

Account 65630 - LIBRARY BOOKS Totals
Account 65641 - AUDIO VISUAL COLLECTIONS

Account 65630 - LIBRARY BOOKS
JUV PRINT
JUV PRINT
JUV PRINT
YA PRINT

ADULT PRINT
ADULT PRINT
ADULT PRINT
ADULT PRINT
ADULT PRINT

Business Unit 4806 - LIFELONG LEARNING & LITERACY
Account 65630 - LIBRARY BOOKS

ADULT PRINT
ADULT PRINT
ADULT PRINT

Account 65641 - AUDIO VISUAL COLLECTIONS
ADULT AV
ADULT AV
ADULT AV
ADULT AV

Account 65630 - LIBRARY BOOKS Totals
Account 65635 - PERIODICALS

NEWSPAPER SUBSCRIPTION REFLEJOS 
Account 65635 - PERIODICALS Totals

ADULT AV
ADULT AV
ADULT AV
ADULT AV

Account 65641 - AUDIO VISUAL COLLECTIONS Totals

ADULT AV
ADULT AV
ADULT AV
ADULT AV
ADULT AV

Business Unit 4825 - ENGAGEMENT SERVICES
Account 65630 - LIBRARY BOOKS

ADULT PRINT
JUV PRINT
JUV PRINT

ACCESS SERVICES COMPUTER SOFTWARE
Account 62340 - IT COMPUTER SOFTWARE Totals

Business Unit 4820 - ACCESS SERVICES Totals

Business Unit 4806 - LIFELONG LEARNING & LITERACY Totals
Business Unit 4820 - ACCESS SERVICES
Account 62340 - IT COMPUTER SOFTWARE

JUV PRINT
YA PRINT

Account 65630 - LIBRARY BOOKS Totals
Business Unit 4835 - INNOVATION & DIGITAL LEARNING Totals

Business Unit 4825 - ENGAGEMENT SERVICES Totals
Business Unit 4835 - INNOVATION & DIGITAL LEARNING
Account 65630 - LIBRARY BOOKS

JUV PRINT
ADULT PRINT
ADULT PRINT
ADULT PRINT

Account 65630 - LIBRARY BOOKS Totals

Account 64005 - ELECTRICITY Totals
Account 64015 - NATURAL GAS

NICOR FEB22
Account 64015 - NATURAL GAS Totals

Account 62225 - BLDG MAINTENANCE SERVICES Totals
Account 64005 - ELECTRICITY

MC SQUARED 02.14.2022
MC SQUARED 02.14.2022

Business Unit 4840 - LIBRARY MAINTENANCE
Account 62225 - BLDG MAINTENANCE SERVICES

CARPET CLEANING
PEST CONTROL
ANNUAL MAINTENANCE COIN/BILL BOXES FOR PUBLIC COPIERS

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
EPL VOLUNTEER MANAGEMENT

Account 56140 - FEES AND MERCHANDISE SALE Totals
Account 62185 - CONSULTING SERVICES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Business Unit 4840 - LIBRARY MAINTENANCE Totals
Business Unit 4845 - LIBRARY ADMINISTRATION
Account 56140 - FEES AND MERCHANDISE SALE

*SALES TAX FEB 2022

Accounts Payable by G/L Distribution Report
Payment Date Range 03/29/22 - 03/29/22

CITY OF EVANSTON                                                                                                                                              
BILLS LIST                                                                                                                                                            
PERIOD ENDING 03.29.2022 FY22   

Business Unit 4850 - LIBRARY GRANTS Totals
Department 48 - LIBRARY Totals

Fund 185 - LIBRARY FUND Totals

Business Unit 4850 - LIBRARY GRANTS
Account 62185 - CONSULTING SERVICES

D65 EVANSTEM
Account 62185 - CONSULTING SERVICES Totals

PAPER BAGS AND ENVELOPES BULK ORDER
Account 65095 - OFFICE SUPPLIES Totals

Business Unit 4845 - LIBRARY ADMINISTRATION Totals

Account 62210 - PRINTING Totals
Account 65095 - OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES
OFFICE SUPPLIES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Account 62185 - CONSULTING SERVICES Totals

Account 62210 - PRINTING
PRINTING FLYERS

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 Run by Tera Davis on 04/13/2022 10:56:29 AM 



ACCOUNT NUMBER SUPPLIER NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

SUPPLEMENTAL BILLS LIST ATTACHMENT

0.00

GRAND TOTAL 29,164.68

Prepared by Date        
Accounts Payable Coordinator

Approved by Date
Library Administrative Services Manager

Approved by Date
Library Director

Approved by Date
Library Board Treasurer

CITY OF EVANSTON                          
LIBRARY BILLS LIST                         
PERIOD ENDING 03.29.2022 FY2022

      SUPPLEMENTAL LIST         
ACH AND WIRE TRANSFERS



Agenda Item 4.B 

 
 

To:   Evanston Public Library Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Karen Danczak-Lyons, Executive Director 
  Heather Norborg, Lifelong Learning and Literacy Manager 
 
Subject:  NewsBank contract to digitize local historical newspapers 
 
Date:   April 13, 2022 
 

Recommendation:   

Staff recommends the approval of the contract with NewsBank to produce a digital 
product consisting of local Evanston historical newspapers from 1872 to 2009. 

 

Funding Source: 

Cost: $345,079 paid in installments over five years 
Our annual review of usage, cost and content of existing resources and staff tools has 
resulted in prioritizing this product over others. We will use savings realized by reduction 
of other subscription costs for a portion of the costs of this product. 
Grants and donations secured for this project will be recognized on the digital product’s 
homepage. 
 

Summary: 

The Evanston Public Library currently provides access to a historical archive of local 
newspapers on microfilm and in print. Many of the oldest print materials are in poor 
physical condition, which greatly restricts their use. Most of these materials are not 
indexed, so the ability to find information in them is limited and time-consuming. There 
is currently no digital access to the majority of these materials. 
 
This project would digitize the full run of the library’s microfilm collection, including the 
Evanston Review and its predecessor publications (Evanston News, News Index, etc.) 
from June 1872 through October 2009. NewsBank has negotiated permission for 
digitizing and providing access to the post-1925 Evanston Review content, which is still 
under copyright and owned by the Tribune Publishing Company. In partnership with 
Shorefront Legacy Center, this project would also digitize the Evanston Newsette and 
Concerned Citizens Commitment, newsletters produced by Melvin Smith for Evanston’s 
African American community during the 1940s-50s and 1970s-80s respectively. Melvin 
Smith’s family and Shorefront have given NewsBank permission to include this content 
in the project. 
 

 

Memorandum 



Agenda Item 4.B 

The digitized archive would be available at computers inside the libraries and remotely 
with an Evanston Public Library card number. It would be searchable by keyword and 
include the full-text of all images, advertisements, captions, obituaries, and articles. 
Keywords searched for would be highlighted in the results screen and pdfs of the results 
could be saved, emailed or printed. This will be very useful for local historians, 
genealogists, librarians, students and more. 
 
The digitized archive would be accessible alongside EPL’s subscription to NewsBank’s 
“Chicago Community Collection,” which includes the Evanston Review from 2009 to the 
present, Evanston Now, the Chicago Sun Times, and other Chicagoland newspapers. 
We would also have access to NewsBank’s new product “Black Life in America,” which 
compiles articles and primary resources on the African American experience from the 
early 18th century to the present from over 19,000 sources, including from over 400 
current and historical Black publications.  
 
We have letters of support for this project from the Evanston History Center, Shorefront 
Legacy Center and Northwestern Archives. 
 



Why digitize Evanston’s 
newspaper archives?

EPL’s Newspaper Memory Project 
Presented by EPL Staff to the EPL Board of Directors



Where We Are Now with Our Newspapers
◈ For the Chicago Tribune, the Chicago Defender, and the New York Times, we are in 

great shape—patrons with an EPL library card have full digital access from home, 
including  keyword searchability and the ability to download or email pdfs of 
articles.



With Evanston Newspapers, However . . . 

. . . Not So Much



How We Do Research Now Using 
Evanston Newspapers



How we do research now:

◈ We have a few, 
incomplete tools to 
help us find 
information.

◈ Card index; 
clipping files & 
index

◈ We help our 
patrons by phone 
or in person.

◈ They can’t really do 
it themselves.

◈ Not available 
remotely



Best case scenario: West Branch Library
◈ But even for the best-case scenario, where a topic is well-documented,  it can still take hours, many articles are overlooked, 

parenthetical mentions that can be significant are not seen, and research is done by librarians and only on site. 



◈ Much work like 
this was done 
for recent 
reparations 
research

 Obituary Research 
for Constructing Biographies

• This time-consuming 
process requires going 
back and forth between 
the obituary file and the 
bound copies/microfilm 
of the Evanston Review.

• This work is done in the 
building by EPL staff.

• And it omits all name 
mentions in non-obits.



Searching Advertisements and Photo Captions

◈ Like 
obituaries, ads 
and photo 
captions can 
contain 
valuable 
information 
about local 
businesses, 
residences, 
and 
individuals

◈ We currently 
have no access 
tools, digital or 
otherwise, for 
this content, 
no clippings 
file, not even a 
cardfile

Actual pages from the Evanston 
Review, 1920s – 1960s. 



The worst-case scenario is: 

Hours are invested and 
nothing is found—even though it may 

be there. 
No way of telling.

“Was this fatal car accident on Sheridan Road sometime in 1935 

mentioned in the newspaper?”

“The grave of Lizzie (Elizabeth) Fairfax, (Aunt 

Lizzie), freed by an Iowa regiment, is in Clinton, 

Iowa. Her daughter Mary Smith lived in Evanston. 

Can you find her?”



How It Could Be
A Look at the 

Digitized Daily 
Northwestern

A Comparable 
NewsBank Project



The Daily Northwestern (1910 - 2018) & Its 
Three Predecessors (1871 - 1910) – 

Cross-searchable



Case Study #1, a 19th Century Query: 
“Frances and Willard”

◈ Searching across all four 
publications simultaneously, we find 
19 articles mentioning Frances 
Willard in Tripod, a predecessor 
publication to the Daily 
Northwestern.

◈ It returns the page with search terms 
highlighted.

◈ The search also captures minor 
mentions, too, such as this one.



Case Study #2: 
Researching the 
History of Saville 

Flowers

◈ Searching for “saville and 
flowers” returns 259 
mentions, starting in the 
late 1940s . . . 

◈ . . . including many articles 
and incidental mentions, 
one of which is reproduced 
here.

◈ Also includes 
advertisements, such as 
this one appearing in the 
July 15, 1949, issue of the 
Daily.

◈ Search terms are always 
highlighted in the page 
image.



Summary: 
What EPL and Evanston Gain By 

Digitizing the local historical 
newspapers at EPL

1. Digitization of the entire 
Evanston Review run plus its 
predecessor publications 
(News, Index, News-Index, et 
al.) back to 1872.

2. Full-text keyword searches 



What EPL and Evanston Gain 
By Digitizing the Evanston 

Review

3. Inclusion of Advertisements 
and Photo Captions

4. Available at any time, 
anywhere, with an EPL card 

number.



What EPL and Evanston Gain 
By Digitizing the Evanston 

Review

5. Inclusion of mid-20th 
century newsletters from 
the Black community. 



What EPL and Evanston 
Gain By Digitizing the 

Evanston Review

6. Added Perk: Black Life 
in America Database

7. Most importantly: 
Better Searches, 
Broader Access, 
Less Staff Time



Various Levels of Donor Recognition 



Questions?







SHOREFRONT 
Collect  |  Preserve  |  Educate 

	
 
 
April 1, 2022 
 
To:  NewsBank 
 and 
 Evanston Public Library 
 
Re:  Melvin Smith newspapers: The Evanston Newsette and the Concerned  
 Citizens Commitment (CCC) Digitization work 
 
 
Since 2008, Shorefront has held the collection of Melvin Smith, an extensive collection that 
includes two newspaper collections, correspondences, photographs, layout paste-ups, financial 
ledgers, and family history totaling over 25 linear feet of materials. We are to understand that 
NewsBank is interested in digitizing his two newspapers; The Evanston Newsette (c1940s- mid 
1950s) and the Concerned Citizens Commitment (c1970-1986). 
 
The Evanston Newsette is available in two formats, the original hard copy and microfilm. We 
understand that you would prefer the microfilm for digitizing. The Concerned Citizens 
Commitment (CCC) is only available as hard copy. This letter serves to confirm that Shorefront 
grants permission to proceed with the digitization of both newspapers. Further, Shorefront 
grants full right to the digital version of these publications to NewsBank.  
 
We expect to have returned to Shorefront the microfilms of the Evanston Newsette as well as 
the hard copies of the CCC upon completion of the digitization process. It is our hope that 
Shorefront may retain a copy of the digitized files or, at minimum, have access to the digitized 
newspapers for internal use at the Shorefront Legacy Center, not to be recirculated in 
compliance to NewsBank. 
 
Compensation to the Collins family (donors of the Smith collection) is expected. We understand 
that it is the responsibility of the Evanston Public Library and not of NewsBank to fulfill this 
condition and hold harmless NewsBank of such responsibility. 
 
If you need any additional information, please contact Shorefront. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
	
 
Morris (Dino) Robinson   Chip Ratliff 
Founder     President 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
 Herman “Chip” Ratliff 
   President 
 Genie Lemieux-Jordan 
   Treasurer 
 Margo Robinson 
   Secretary 
 Richard Foreman 
 Steven Frost 
 Geneva Hallen 
 Skyla Hearn 
 Steve Lemieux-Jordan 
 Nicole Parker  

 
 
Staff 
 Dino Robinson    
  Founder, Executive Dir. 
 
 
Advisors 
 Shawna Cooper-Gibson, PhD 

 Debi Chess-Mabie 
 Kris Graves 
 Parneshia Jones 
 Don Patterson 
 Morris E. Robinson, Sr. 
 Oliver Ruff 
 Shelly Spencer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Office: 
2214 Ridge Avenue 
Evanston, IL 60201 
847.864.7467 
 
 
Mail: 
P.O. Box 1894 
Evanston, IL 60204 
 
 
shorefront@me.com 
shorefrontlegacy.org 









Agenda Item 5A

Members Present: Terry Soto, Esther Wallen, Michelle Judon, Joyce Miller-Bean, Mariana
Priscilla Bojorquez, Karen Danczak Lyons

Updates
● Data collection is beginning; results will be shared at future meetings. Members

expressed appreciation for Joyce’s interview on the importance of this initiative.

● Partners of the EPL [PEPL] continue to seek volunteers. Volunteers will be
representative of Evanston’s population and could include teen representatives.

● Later this month, District 65 will share the results of their research and discuss the
construction of a new 5th ward school.  Conversations regarding adding an EPL branch
within the new 5th ward school continue.  In addition, exploration of co-locating a new
EPL branch in the renovated Family Focus building continues.

● EPL will interview students for summer jobs at the Mayor’s Summer Youth Employment
Program recruitment event.

● The construction of a Mobile Library will be brought to a future EPL Board meeting for
consideration.

● RETF will invite the Collections Advisory Committee to a RETF meeting to discuss the
role of volunteers, and explore the suggestion of paid stipends as a strategy to help
volunteers participate and as an expression of valuing their contributions.

1



Library Director’s Report 
April 20, 2022 

 
Updates: 
 

● District 65 has determined that the new 5th ward school footprint can not 
accommodate a 10,000 square foot Evanston Public Library branch. Discussions 
continue with Family Focus; an update will be provided at an upcoming Board 
meeting.   

● Jennifer Shreve and Renee Neumeier submitted a Project Next Generation Grant to 
the Illinois State Library to fund the Code It Challenge and the Film it Challenge 
during the 2022-2023 school year 

● The Cardboard Carnival Community Showcase was held on April 9 at Fleetwood 
Jourdain Community Center 

● Staff from EPL and the Moran Center hosted 2 eviction expungement sessions, 1 at 
Crown and 1 at Fleetwood-Jourdain. 12 families/individuals were directly assisted on 
the spot, with calls continuing to be fielded in the offices at the Moran Center as a 
result of these events. Plans are being considered for a legal support outpost at 
Crown, in partnership with the Moran Center. 

● Elacsha Madison, Kellye Fleming,  and Jean Fies from Evanston Grows, wrote a grant 
for $3,000 to Whole Kids to install a hydroponic planting system at both the main 
library and the  Robert Crown branch. The hydroponic systems will be maintained by 
community members and staff and EPL staff will do a series of programs around 
gardening and nutrition. The grant will also include transforming the Reading Garden 
to a greener space with more plants and flowers. 

● Elacsha Madison and Renee Neumeier submitted a second application for $3,000 to 
Whole Kids on behalf of Family Focus to teach a series of gardening workshops 
around food justice for their NSBE Jr (National Society of Black Engineers). group 
that EPL facilitates weekly. During the community listening session,  some of the 
teens talked about food justice and wanting to be able to address it. NSBE Jr. teens 
will help start the seedlings to be used in the garden beds at Family Focus. The teens 
will also continue to grow year round and take the vegetables that they grow and 
place them in the community refrigerators. If the piloting year is successful, we will 
work with our community partners serving teens to expand the program. EPL is 
working with members of the Family Focus Board (Anne Sills), Chef Q, Evanston 
Grows, and the Links Foundation.  

● Look out patrons! Starting April 1st the Book Mobile will be back out on the streets 
providing programs and resources.Thanks to the Maintenance Team for providing 
basic maintenance and repair! If you see me rolling on the street please say hi and 
ask about our exciting programs rolling to a school or park near you (Elacsha 
Madison).  

● Library Express Service will begin at Robert Crown on April 1. Library Express 
Service will allow Evanston cardholders to utilize the Crown branch during unstaffed 
early morning and evening hours. Over 50 residents have signed up during the pre-
registration period.  

● Engagement Services has been awarded $1500 from the Lighthouse Rotary in 
support of STEM kits for summer distribution. 

 



Data Dashboard 
 
 
https://datastudio.google.com/reporting/071b2ae1-260b-43ca-8de4-57c7cd77cb5c 

 
 

Staff reports: 
 

● Liaison to Evanston Nursery and Pre-K schools [Laura Antolin] 
 

○ Book Bag deliveries continue at 5 Preschool and Daycare Centers (Baby 
Toddler Nursery-Infant Welfare Society of Evanston, Teen Baby Nursery-
Infant Welfare Society of Evanston, Toddler Town, KinderCare, YMCA 
HeadStart at Family Focus) and at 13 Home Daycares for a total of 26 bags 
monthly.  Two volunteers continue to help with delivery to 12 Daycare Homes. 

○ ABC Boosters: 
■ Things are moving forward with ABC Boosters - both with our partners 

(Youth Job Center, District65, City of Evanston) and with our site 
partners ( Jump Start at Joseph E. Hill Early Childhood Center, 
Fleetwood-Jourdain, YMCA Head Start,  Learning Bridge Early 
Education Center and possibly Robert Crown Preschool);   youth were 
interviewed by Youth Job Center at the Mayor’s Summer Youth 
Employment Fair and we are working on hiring and materials. 

 
○ 2021-2022 school year Programming: 

We are still considering in-person STEAM sessions at The Family Center on a 
month to month basis depending on Covid numbers. 

● The Family Center (at Joseph E. Hill Early Childhood Center) 
○ In-person STEAM Club (3 toddler classrooms) 

● March 31, 2022 , Attendance = 22 kids; 7 adults 
● Early Childhood preschool at Joseph E. Hill Early Childhood Center 

○  Virtual STEAM Club w/Ms. Laura  
● March 16, 2022, Attendance = 12 kids; 9 adults 

○  Virtual PACT w/Ms. Laura  
● March 17, 2022 canceled 

○ Work with NU, School of Communication: 
■ Met with Dr, Marisha  Speights Atkins, Department of Communication 

Sciences and Disorders and other staff to continue to work on 
partnering around services to families with children 0-3; hoping to get 
help administering ASQ111 and to also help set up some summer 
programming with bilingual learners and English language learners 
who can benefit from early literacy support. 

 
○ LENA Start Grant w/The Family Center: 

We are still planning to start an April cohort in a couple of weeks and firming 
up participants. 

  
○ Talk Read Sing text Messages 

https://datastudio.google.com/reporting/071b2ae1-260b-43ca-8de4-57c7cd77cb5c


Continue to send out twice weekly Talk Read Sing early literacy  text 
messages/email messages in English and Spanish to families with children 0-3, 
through govDelivery.  We now reach 1513  English speaking families (up by 12 
families from last month)  and 756 Spanish speaking families (up by 15 families from 
last month).  Although this effort goes out under both EPL and EC2C logos, it is an 
EPL effort. 
 

○ Infant Welfare Society of Evanston- hoping to be able to do some in-person 
programming this summer if Covid cooperates. 

 
 

● Liaison to School District 65 and Evanston Township High School District 202 
[Elacsha Madison] 

○ EPL participated in the ETHS Career Pathways Fair on March 16th. Over 75 
Juniors and Seniors stopped at the EPL table to learn about  library career 
choices, library school, volunteer opportunities and post high school options. 
(Elacsha and Mariana) 

○ EPL will be working with ETHS Day School to ensure students have library 
cards and access to all the library resources. Students will receive an 
overview on Libby and Hoopla and the many benefits of the digital resources.   

○ EPL will also be participating in ETHS Family Literacy Night on April 27, 2022. 
Library staff will be providing families with tips and resources on how to 
encourage literacy and writing at home with some cool activities for the 
entire family. (Elacsha, Carmen, Mariana, and Kennedy) 

 
● Liaison to Northwestern University and Higher Education [Renee Neumeier, 

Heather Norborg, Jill Skwerski] 
○ Oakton Community College English as a Second Language classes will 

resume in-person at the Main Library on Tuesdays and Fridays from 10am to 
1pm starting on July 5, 2022. 

○ The Northwestern University TIDAL Lab received permission to apply for a 
$25,000 Motorola Solutions grant in partnership with EPL and D65 to fund 
the Tunepad curriculum we have been developing together.  

○ The Northwestern University TIDAL did not receive the National Science 
Foundation DRK12 grant they applied for;  EPL was a subgrantee.  They will 
reapply in the fall. 

○ CodeID classes, taught by undergrad McCormick Engineering students, 
continue monthly at Crown. During March, students used Tunepad to work 
through a coding challenge. 

○ Curriculum and logistical planning are proceeding for the 2 week summer 
STEM camp that will be hosted at Crown and led by Oakton Community 
College staff and interns. 

○ Elacsha has been working with Digital Divas for the months of February and 
March to get the DIVAS prepared for the Cardboard Carnival. Going forward, 
EPL and Divas will collaborate on 4 family events throughout the summer to 
help celebrate and strengthen families using STEM activities.  



○ Ozivell Ecford, Laura Antolin, Sally Battle, Kennedy Joseph and Liz Stiemle 
continue to work with NU’s TIDAL Lab on the D65 5th grade computer 
science classes on their TunePad projects.  They have had listening and  
feedback sessions and are planning a showcase for parents and caregivers 
on May 21, 2022.   

 
 
Upcoming events of Note: 
April 9 - May 8: The Bias Inside Us exhibition from the Smithsonian Institute will be on the 3rd 

floor of the Main Library. Class and after school visits arranged by the Teen Engagement 

Coordinator. Related public programming includes: 

● Weekly community art making workshops with Kids Create Change (Saturdays, 1-2pm, 

all ages, 3rd floor) 

● Let’s Talk @ Lunch with the YWCA Equity Institute (4/20, 12-1pm, adults, Community 

Meeting Room) 

● Human Library (4/24, 1-4pm, all ages, 3rd floor) 

● Bias & Accountability workshop with the YWCA Equity Institute (5/2, 6:30pm, adults, 

Virtual on Zoom) 

 

April 26 & May 3: SCOTUS: Law and Politics, a mini-course in partnership with Northwestern 

Emeriti Organization, featuring retired political science professor Jerry Goldman   

 

Taste of the Loft visits for 5th through 8th grade, starting May 2nd through June 6th 

 

Volunteer Coordinator’s Report: 

At the March Board of Trustees meeting Esther Wallen asked how many volunteers performed 

more than one volunteer function in 2021. 

There were more volunteers who served in multiple positions prior to the pandemic, but the total 

for 2021 was: 

Three positions: 2 volunteers 

Two positions: 12 volunteers 

One position: 76 volunteers 

 

https://www.epl.org/the-bias-inside-us-smitsonian-exhibit-coming-to-evanston-public-library-april-9-may-8/
https://evanston.libnet.info/event/5564125


Agenda Item 8

To: Evanston Public Library Board of Trustees

From: Karen Danczak Lyons, Executive Director

Subject: Administrative Services Update

Date: April 12, 2022

This memo provides an update on significant administrative activities.

Human Resources
Hiring activity continues as we look to fill attrition vacancies.  Interviews and application
review
are in the progress to fill the following positions:

● Engagement Services Library Assistant 25 hours position vacated by Pim Halka
● Library Clerk 20 hours position in Access vacated by Penny Wongtrakul’s

departure
● Assistant Library Director position was posted on PLA
● Custodian II full time interviews are being set-up
● Safety Monitor 20 hours position in Robert Crown posting is closed, applicants

are being reviewed to be selected for interviews
● Volunteer coordinator position vacated by Mary Kling posting closed. Interviews

are in the process of being scheduled.

Continuing with Project Ready curriculum in April: offering 3 sessions of book
discussion of JUST MERCY by Bryan Stevenson.  March’s 3 sessions were very
successful, a total of 45 staff members attended.

Financial Resources
The Library Fund financial report for the period ending March 31st is included for your
review. For the operating fund, revenue collection is at 46% of budget projection and
expenditures 18%. Capital fund expenditures total 17% of the budget.

Facilities Update
Our elevator upgrade project at the Main library is wrapping up quickly.  Pending final
inspections we should have both cars online by mid-month.

New book drops are now located at the RCCC parking lot and just off of the corner of
Prairie and Central Street.  Both units offer drive up access.



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % Used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   185 - LIBRARY FUND

REVENUE
51015 PROPERTY TAXES 7,252,000.00 .00 7,252,000.00 2,665,026.17 .00 3,833,942.85 3,418,057.15 53 7,298,616.48
52610 LIBRARY FINES & FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 4,466.46
53200 BEV SNACK VENDING MACHINE .00 .00 .00 71.32 .00 105.90 (105.90) +++ 287.03
55201 Federal Grants 165,000.00 .00 165,000.00 .00 .00 9,211.99 155,788.01 6 220,170.88
55245 LIBRARY STATE PER CAPITA GRANT 109,866.00 .00 109,866.00 .00 .00 .00 109,866.00 0 109,866.85
56011 DONATIONS  400,000.00 .00 400,000.00 .00 .00 5,502.99 394,497.01 1 440,674.61
56045 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 9.02 9,990.98 0 14,935.32
56140 FEES AND MERCHANDISE SALE .00 .00 .00 (47.00) .00 1.35 (1.35) +++ 3.85
56501 INVESTMENT INCOME 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 396.59 .00 1,312.99 13,687.01 9 10,403.29
57002 TRANSFER FROM ENDOWMENT 217,911.00 .00 217,911.00 .00 .00 .00 217,911.00 0 250,000.00
57515 LIBRARY MATERIAL REPLACEMENT CHARGES 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 .00 .00 4,070.25 10,929.75 27 21,668.58
57526 LIBRARY BOOK SALE 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 725.27 4,274.73 15 3,539.78
57535 LIBRARY COPY MACH. CHG 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 2,468.05 2,531.95 49 8,943.63
57540 LIBRARY MEETING RM RENTAL 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 .00 5,000.00 0 714.11
57545 NORTH BRANCH RENTAL INCOME 19,800.00 .00 19,800.00 .00 .00 2,233.33 17,566.67 11 25,149.63
57551 LIBRARY GRANTS 125,000.00 .00 125,000.00 .00 .00 1,878.99 123,121.01 2 58,247.18

REVENUE TOTALS $8,344,577.00 $0.00 $8,344,577.00 $2,665,447.08 $0.00 $3,861,462.98 $4,483,114.02 46% $8,467,687.68
EXPENSE

61010 REGULAR PAY 3,423,450.07 .00 3,423,450.07 234,233.77 .00 601,157.43 2,822,292.64 18 2,990,550.11
61050 PERMANENT PART-TIME 1,425,734.72 .00 1,425,734.72 95,044.46 .00 241,054.56 1,184,680.16 17 1,200,084.96
61060 SEASONAL EMPLOYEES 47,000.00 .00 47,000.00 4,637.50 .00 11,615.00 35,385.00 25 76,490.04
61110 OVERTIME PAY 16,700.00 .00 16,700.00 472.35 .00 2,746.62 13,953.38 16 22,777.91
61415 TERMINATION PAYOUTS .00 .00 .00 201.76 .00 201.76 (201.76) +++ 25,432.54
61420 ANNUAL SICK LEAVE PAYOUT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 3,732.64 (3,732.64) +++ 3,431.10
61430 VACATION PAYOUTS (PREVIOUSLY OTHER PAYOUTS) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 4,143.16
61510 HEALTH INSURANCE 666,411.46 .00 666,411.46 50,618.70 .00 150,422.76 515,988.70 23 596,612.43
61610 DENTAL INSURANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 698.37
61615 LIFE INSURANCE 2,409.52 .00 2,409.52 191.89 .00 567.38 1,842.14 24 2,215.09
61625 AUTO ALLOWANCE 4,800.00 .00 4,800.00 400.00 .00 1,200.00 3,600.00 25 4,800.00
61626 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 2,100.00 .00 2,100.00 175.00 .00 525.00 1,575.00 25 2,100.00
61630 SHOE ALLOWANCE 540.00 .00 540.00 .00 .00 .00 540.00 0 540.00
61710 IMRF 222,232.66 .00 222,232.66 15,545.63 .00 46,972.19 175,260.47 21 344,238.90
61725 SOCIAL SECURITY 297,634.87 .00 297,634.87 20,049.65 .00 51,631.98 246,002.89 17 255,981.16
61730 MEDICARE 70,189.02 .00 70,189.02 4,689.02 .00 12,075.26 58,113.76 17 60,353.21
62185 CONSULTING SERVICES 245,500.00 .00 245,500.00 14,678.92 32,728.83 22,070.67 190,700.50 22 149,788.26
62205 ADVERTISING 8,000.00 .00 8,000.00 .00 .00 .00 8,000.00 0 39.00
62210 PRINTING 8,000.00 .00 8,000.00 693.00 .00 693.00 7,307.00 9 2,980.97
62225 BLDG MAINTENANCE SERVICES 198,000.00 .00 198,000.00 28,670.68 (15,196.00) 46,407.20 166,788.80 16 280,787.42
62235 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00 10,000.00 0 .00

Run by Lea Hernandez-solis on 04/13/2022 01:18:38 PM Page 1 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 03/31/22

Include Rollup Account and Rollup to Object Account



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % Used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   185 - LIBRARY FUND

EXPENSE
62245 OTHER EQMT MAINTENANCE 1,300.00 .00 1,300.00 .00 .00 .00 1,300.00 0 2,277.00
62275 POSTAGE CHARGEBACKS 2,600.00 .00 2,600.00 .00 .00 .00 2,600.00 0 468.00
62290 TUITION 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 .00 .00 .00 15,000.00 0 6,206.50
62295 TRAINING & TRAVEL 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 .00 .00 3,245.48 21,754.52 13 18,982.63
62305 RENTAL OF AUTO-FLEET MAINTENANCE 5,440.00 .00 5,440.00 453.33 .00 1,359.99 4,080.01 25 5,436.00
62309 RENTAL OF AUTO REPLACEMENT 4,885.00 .00 4,885.00 407.08 .00 1,221.24 3,663.76 25 4,884.00
62315 POSTAGE 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 423.78
62340 IT COMPUTER SOFTWARE 221,200.00 .00 221,200.00 5,702.10 7,503.00 52,214.78 161,482.22 27 206,844.98
62341 INTERNET SOLUTION PROVIDERS 255,000.00 .00 255,000.00 50,245.07 20,639.41 57,781.58 176,579.01 31 239,940.25
62360 MEMBERSHIP DUES 2,100.00 .00 2,100.00 .00 .00 666.00 1,434.00 32 1,417.37
62380 COPY MACHINE CHARGES 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00 10,000.00 0 221.01
62506 WORK- STUDY 7,300.00 .00 7,300.00 .00 .00 .00 7,300.00 0 4,728.82
62705 BANK SERVICE CHARGES 5,700.00 .00 5,700.00 334.24 .00 1,313.58 4,386.42 23 4,544.39
64005 ELECTRICITY 115,767.00 .00 115,767.00 16,341.93 .00 25,022.07 90,744.93 22 96,182.78
64015 NATURAL GAS 28,500.00 .00 28,500.00 2,829.43 .00 4,777.48 23,722.52 17 18,254.79
64505 TELECOMMUNICATIONS 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00 .00 .00 3,500.00 0 .00
64540 TELECOMMUNICATIONS - WIRELESS 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00 .00 344.64 1,655.36 17 4,759.26
65020 CLOTHING .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 2,120.00
65040 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 12,000.00 .00 12,000.00 754.11 .00 1,092.38 10,907.62 9 10,702.83
65050 BLDG MAINTENANCE MATERIAL 35,000.00 .00 35,000.00 517.84 .00 12,396.22 22,603.78 35 22,061.66
65095 OFFICE SUPPLIES 50,000.00 .00 50,000.00 729.09 6,975.59 2,254.45 40,769.96 18 27,772.60
65100 LIBRARY SUPPLIES 125,000.00 .00 125,000.00 3,848.92 2,372.46 9,609.60 113,017.94 10 196,972.20
65503 FURNITURE / FIXTURES / EQUIPMENT 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 .00 1,500.00 0 1,463.52
65550 AUTOMOTIVE EQUIPMENT 7,000.00 .00 7,000.00 .00 .00 .00 7,000.00 0 .00
65555 IT COMPUTER HARDWARE 45,000.00 .00 45,000.00 .00 .00 .00 45,000.00 0 24,240.95
65630 LIBRARY BOOKS 539,400.00 .00 539,400.00 54,362.58 .00 68,395.66 471,004.34 13 537,017.82
65635 PERIODICALS 9,500.00 .00 9,500.00 2,590.28 95.89 2,752.15 6,651.96 30 6,527.48
65641 AUDIO VISUAL COLLECTIONS 72,000.00 .00 72,000.00 7,153.97 .00 7,180.46 64,819.54 10 71,239.13
66131 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 289,328.00 .00 289,328.00 24,110.67 .00 72,332.01 216,995.99 25 280,896.00

EXPENSE TOTALS $8,540,722.32 $0.00 $8,540,722.32 $640,682.97 $55,119.18 $1,517,033.22 $6,968,569.92 18% $7,820,630.38

Fund   185 - LIBRARY FUND Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 8,344,577.00 .00 8,344,577.00 2,665,447.08 .00 3,861,462.98 4,483,114.02 46% 8,467,687.68
EXPENSE TOTALS 8,540,722.32 .00 8,540,722.32 640,682.97 55,119.18 1,517,033.22 6,968,569.92 18% 7,820,630.38

Fund   185 - LIBRARY FUND Totals ($196,145.32) $0.00 ($196,145.32) $2,024,764.11 ($55,119.18) $2,344,429.76 ($2,485,455.90) $647,057.30
Fund   186 - LIBRARY DEBT SERVICE FUND

REVENUE
51015 PROPERTY TAXES 506,625.00 .00 506,625.00 .00 .00 .00 506,625.00 0 482,243.00

REVENUE TOTALS $506,625.00 $0.00 $506,625.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $506,625.00 0% $482,243.00

Run by Lea Hernandez-solis on 04/13/2022 01:18:38 PM Page 2 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 03/31/22

Include Rollup Account and Rollup to Object Account



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % Used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   186 - LIBRARY DEBT SERVICE FUND

EXPENSE
68305 DEBT SERVICE- PRINCIPAL 264,706.00 .00 264,706.00 .00 .00 .00 264,706.00 0 232,343.00
68315 DEBT SERVICE- INTEREST 241,919.00 .00 241,919.00 .00 .00 .00 241,919.00 0 249,900.89

EXPENSE TOTALS $506,625.00 $0.00 $506,625.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $506,625.00 0% $482,243.89

Fund   186 - LIBRARY DEBT SERVICE FUND Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 506,625.00 .00 506,625.00 .00 .00 .00 506,625.00 0% 482,243.00
EXPENSE TOTALS 506,625.00 .00 506,625.00 .00 .00 .00 506,625.00 0% 482,243.89

Fund   186 - LIBRARY DEBT SERVICE FUND Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($0.89)
Fund   187 - LIBRARY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FD

REVENUE
56060 BOND PROCEEDS 480,000.00 .00 480,000.00 .00 .00 .00 480,000.00 0 .00

REVENUE TOTALS $480,000.00 $0.00 $480,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $480,000.00 0% $0.00
EXPENSE

65515 OTHER IMPROVEMENTS 680,000.00 .00 680,000.00 .00 116,956.00 .00 563,044.00 17 405,832.11
EXPENSE TOTALS $680,000.00 $0.00 $680,000.00 $0.00 $116,956.00 $0.00 $563,044.00 17% $405,832.11

Fund   187 - LIBRARY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FD Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 480,000.00 .00 480,000.00 .00 .00 .00 480,000.00 0% .00
EXPENSE TOTALS 680,000.00 .00 680,000.00 .00 116,956.00 .00 563,044.00 17% 405,832.11

Fund   187 - LIBRARY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FD Totals ($200,000.00) $0.00 ($200,000.00) $0.00 ($116,956.00) $0.00 ($83,044.00) ($405,832.11)

Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 9,331,202.00 .00 9,331,202.00 2,665,447.08 .00 3,861,462.98 5,469,739.02 41% 8,949,930.68
EXPENSE TOTALS 9,727,347.32 .00 9,727,347.32 640,682.97 172,075.18 1,517,033.22 8,038,238.92 17% 8,708,706.38

Grand Totals ($396,145.32) $0.00 ($396,145.32) $2,024,764.11 ($172,075.18) $2,344,429.76 ($2,568,499.90) $241,224.30

Run by Lea Hernandez-solis on 04/13/2022 01:18:38 PM Page 3 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 03/31/22

Include Rollup Account and Rollup to Object Account



Endowment for the Evanston Public Library

Holdings as of March 31, 2022 Value % of portfolio

 Symbol Shares/Quantity Price as of March 2022 % of portfolio by asset class

Vanguard S&P 500 Index Fund VFIAX 5299.044 $418.16 $2,215,848.24 43.21%

Vanguard Small-Cap Index Fund VSMAX 3965.937 $101.88 $404,049.66 7.88%

Vanguard REIT Index Fund VGSLX 1289.300 $153.62 $198,062.27 3.86%

Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund VTIAX 15790.774 $32.07 $506,410.12 9.88%

Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund VEMAX 7374.550 $38.33 $282,666.50 5.51% 70.3%

Vanguard Federal Money Market Fund VMFXX 1.000 $484,998.13 $484,998.13 9.46%  

IShares Silver Trust SLV 4788.000 $22.88 $109,549.44 2.14%

SPDR Gold Trust GLD 625.000 $180.65 $112,906.25 2.20% 13.8%

US Treasury TIPS Notes, maturing 1/25, 2.375% 100000.000 $111.031 $165,561.95 3.23%

US Treasury TIPS Notes, maturing 1/26, 2.0% 100000.000 $112.109 $158,762.46 3.10%

US Treasury TIPS Notes, maturing 2/40, 2.125% 100000.000 $142.047 $184,720.49 3.60% 9.9%

 

Vanguard Short-Term Investment Grade Bond Fund VFSUX 10.320 29,486.16                $304,297.16 5.93% 5.9%

$5,127,832.67 100.0%

 

 Cash Equivalents 13.8%

  US Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 9.9%

Corporate Bonds 5.9%

Domestic Equities 55.0%

International Equities 15.4%

` 100.0%



 

 1 

 
 

To:  Evanston Public Library Facilities Committee and Library Board 
   
From:  Karen Danczak Lyons, Executive Library Director 

John Devaney, Facilities Manager 
 
Subject: Approval of Main Library Ventilation Fan Upgrade CIP 22-07 
 
Date:  April 5, 2022 

 
 

Recommended Action:   
Staff recommends Facilities Committee/Library Board approval of the proposal from Voris 
Mechanical Inc., located at 370 Windy Point Drive, Glendale Heights, IL 60139, for the 
purchase and replacement of the main building ventilation fans at the Main Library as 
indicated in Bid 22-07 for the amount of $492,850.00.  
 
Funding Source:  
Funding is from the 2022 Capital Improvement Fund, account 
415.40.4116.65515.480003 and will be paid through Library debt. The budget for this 
project at $492,850.00. 
 
Summary: 
This proposal includes the furnishing and installation of all equipment, parts, automation 
controls, and labor for the replacement of the two (2) main building ventilations Main 
Library.  
 
In 2013 and 2021, the comprehensive facility assessment report for the Main Library 
included recommendations for major mechanical renovations. As a result of this 
assessment report, the replacement of the fans was included in the 2022 Capital 
Improvement Budget approved by the Library Board in fall of 2021.  
 
Both fans are responsible for moving conditioned air throughout the facility. Both the fans 
and controls have reached their useful life and can no longer provide reliable service to 
the facility.  Any downtime whatsoever would result in closure of the Main library due to 
lack of conditioned and filtered air.  Occupied commercial buildings require ventilation air 
by building code for public occupancy.   
  

 

Memorandum 



 

 2 

Both main fans and controls are original to the facility; most parts are obsolete and nearly 
impossible to source.  The control technology is aging, and the labor force does not offer 
many qualified technicians that are versed in the operation and maintenance HVAC 
pneumatic controls.    
 
This project will include a total of eight (8) replacement fans replacing our two (2) existing 
fans.  This platform will offer robust reliability that we did not possess before. 
 
During February 2022, Bid 22-07 Main Library Ventilation Fan Upgrade was issued to the 
public bid.  On March 23rd two mechanical contracting firms attended a pre-bid at Main 
library. 
 
The following firms submitted bids by the March deadline for consideration: 
 

Bidder Address Amount

Voris Mechanical 370 Windy Point Dr., Glendale Hts, IL 60139$492,850.00

MG Mechanical, Inc 1513 Lamb Rd., Woodstock, IL 60098 $506,800.00

 
 
Voris Mechanical submitted the most responsible and responsive bid for the project.   
 
Staff recommends that Voris Mechanical be awarded this work based on their positive 
references, previous City of Evanston projects, and lowest responsive/responsible bid in 
the amount of $492,850.00. If the Facilities Committee approves this purchase 
recommendation will be presented to the Library Board. 
 
Time is of the essence due to extended equipment lead times.  
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Received Bids. (2) 
2. Engineering Plans and technical specifications. 
3. Grumman/Butkus Associates Project Recommendations and budget projections. 
4. Informative link to FanWall Technologies.  

 
https://www.nortekair.com/innovation/fanwall-technology-the-preferred-fan-array/ 

 
 

 
 
 













































































Agenda Item 11.C 

 
 

To:   Evanston Public Library Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Karen Danczak Lyons, Executive Director  
 
Subject:  Book and Technology Mobile  
 
Date:   April 15, 2022  
 
Recommended Action 
Based upon our research, staff recommends the following next steps: 

• During the 11 Community Listening sessions, the interest in creating an EPL 
book mobile was expressed repeatedly.  During the strategic planning process, 
continue to ask residents specifically about their interest in adding a book and 
technology mobile to the array of services offered by the Evanston Public Library. 
Gather data through conversations with residents throughout Evanston and 
particularly in the 5th, 8th and 9th wards about the programs and services that 
are their priorities and whether they would come to the book and tech mobile to 
receive these programs and services.  

• For residents in the 5th ward, gauge any preference to the use of a book and 
tech mobile vs. a physical library in their ward. 

• Create a schedule of outreach opportunities.  Refine cost estimates for operating 
costs. 

• Address logistical concerns. 
• Update Evanston Public Library Board of Trustees on research and progress 

including resident feedback. 
• If there is support from the Board of Trustees, engage the consultant and begin 

the process of creating a concept, RFP documents and timeline for 
bid//award/fabrication in 2022. Review concept during the 2023 budget process. 
If approved and ordered in 2023, estimated delivery of the book and technology 
mobile is in 2025.  

 
Summary 
Case Studies: Experience at other libraries 
 
Arlington Heights (AHML) 

• Michael Swendrowski Consulting Cost: approximately $10,000 (in 2007) 
• Budget of $250,000 was marked for purchase of a new Bookmobile 
• Specification planning began as early as 2006 
• Construction began November 2008  

 

Memorandum 



Agenda Item 11.C 

• Delivery of new bookmobile occurred April 2009 
• Went to bid to the following companies:  OBS, Matthews, and Farber 

o Lowest bid was OBS at approximately $250,000 
o Second lowest bid was Farber$255,000 
o Highest bid was Matthews approximately $275,000  

• Purchase price of Bookmobile in 2008 was approximately $275,000 from 
Matthews 
 

• Staff:   1 full time Bookmobile Supervisor/Driver 
 1 full time Bookmobile Driver 

2 part time drivers (They are in the process of changing one of these part time 
drivers to full time to reduce turnover of drivers). (Driver school for CDL is $3,000 
per person). 

 1 part time clerk 
• 29 individual stop locations visited over a 2-week span 
• 3 stops per day from 3pm - 7:30pm 
• Additional stops on Saturday, Sunday, and weekday mornings for special events 

and school visits 
• Maintenance budget was approximately $5,000 in 2010 budget 
• Budget today is $10,000 ($8,000 for maintenance and $2,000 contingency)  

*Actual yearly expenses for maintenance averages about $6,000 per year for a 
12-year-old bookmobile 

 
Click here to be directed to the AHML bookmobile stops page. 
 

 
 
Fountaindale 

• Fountaindale’s new book mobile is a hybrid truck that will be delivered in March, 
2021 (delayed due to Covid) at a cost of $399,000. The timeline from design 
development through delivery is 5 years. Only one bid was received. 

• This bookmobile replaces a 16-year-old bookmobile that has had significant 
maintenance issues for the past 6 + years. 

• Fountaindale employs 8 full time staff plus 2 full time managers for their 
bookmobile and delivery van. Seven of the eight staff have a C 

https://www.ahml.info/services/bookmobile


Agenda Item 11.C 

license.  Fountaindale budgets $100,000 per year for fuel, insurance and 
maintenance. 

• The bookmobile (pre Covid) focuses primarily on senior centers and schools, 
working with local school librarians to schedule class visits and to supplement 
school book collections. During Covid the routes have added stops at shopping 
centers. 

• Schedule of stops: Monday - Friday from 9:00 am - 2:00 pm: senior centers and 
schools; 3:00 pm - 5:00 pm: apartment complexes; evening and weekends - 
churches and big box store parking lots. The church stop is currently the busiest; 
a book return is located at the church stop.  

• Their program focuses on book circulation, children’s programs and not on 
teaching technology. Wi Fi hotspots are also circulated from the bookmobile.  

 
Skokie Public Library 

•  The process to design and order started in January 2015 by working with a 
consultant. The consultant helped develop the plan for the new vehicle, handled 
the bidding process and procurement, and oversaw the 
construction/customization. 

•  5 years ago, when Skokie went out to bid, there weren’t that many companies 
that were customizing bookmobiles. LDV (Wisconsin), Matthews (NC), and OBS 
(OH) were the three companies that bid on their project, and Skokie selected the 
low bidder, OBS, at a cost of $322,900. (NOTE: OBS appears to be out of 
business.) 

•   Skokie has 5 bookmobile staff members who can drive the vehicle, and they all 
had to get the proper license to do so. It’s not an easy process. Outside of the 
community engagement supervisor who leads the team and oversees the 
operation, the other staff are Grade 6, which starts at $20.96/hour. 

•  Here’s the page on their website with all the information about our regular stops. 
https://skokielibrary.info/about/bookmobile/ 

• There’s a nice video : https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=eFy5u66-x-s 
• Here’s a blog post about the bookmobile service’s history at Skokie Public 

Library: https://skokielibrary.info/blog/102/bookmobile 
 

Hiring a consultant 
 
Our research suggests that the specialized nature of this project requires the support of 
a consultant to manage and deliver the highest quality book and technology mobile. 
SVS Services has a distinguished track record and assisted Skokie, Arlington Heights 
and Fountaindale with the design and fabrication of their vehicles. 
 
The following attachments include background information from SVS, and an initial 
proposal which would be subject to further negotiation. 
 
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45 attid=0.1&permmsgid=msg-
f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline  
 
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45&attid=0.2&permmsgid=msg-
f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline  

https://skokielibrary.info/about/bookmobile/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=eFy5u66-x-s
https://skokielibrary.info/blog/102/bookmobile-60th-anniversary/
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45&attid=0.1&permmsgid=msg-f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45&attid=0.1&permmsgid=msg-f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45&attid=0.2&permmsgid=msg-f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45&attid=0.2&permmsgid=msg-f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline


Agenda Item 11.C 

 
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45&attid=0.3&permmsgid=msg-
f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline  
 
The proposal is divided into three phases: 
 
Phase 1 - Development:  
 
Includes consultation and report, specifications, AutoCAD floor plan, independent cost 
estimate, and suggested list of qualified vendors. (Timeline: 2 – 4 weeks from 
engagement) 
 
 Deliverables: o Analysis Recommendation Report (Word and/or PDF document) o 
Specifications (Word and/or PDF document) o AutoCAD Floor Plan (AutoCAD and/or 
PDF document) 
 
Fee:  $8,100 
 
Phase 2 - Procurement:  
 
Includes RFP assistance or issue and response analysis with recommendation report. 
(Timeline: 1 week from receipt of RFP responses)  
 
Deliverables: o Cost Estimate (Excel and/or PDF document) o Recommended Vendor 
List (Word and/or PDF document) o Award Recommendation Report (Word and/or PDF 
document)  
 
Fee:  $3,400 
 
Phase 3 - Construction: 
 
 Includes vendor interaction/guidance, vendor field inspections/meeting (as contracted), 
and completed project analysis/inspection report. (Timeline: 1 week from inspection 
completion) Deliverables: o Project Inspection Report (Word and/or PDF document) 
 
Fee:  $ 8,400 
 
Total fee for proposal:  $19,900 
 
Capital costs and timeline 

• Cost of fabrication depending upon features is $350-$400,000+. 
• From concept through design/bid/procurement and production could require 24 

months - three + years. 
• Consultant engagement estimate: $19,900 including travel costs. 

 
Operating Costs 

• Salaries and benefits 
• Vehicle maintenance and repair 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45&attid=0.3&permmsgid=msg-f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=d5e0bd5d45&attid=0.3&permmsgid=msg-f:1726292156526934562&th=17f50591f054ba22&view=att&disp=inline


Agenda Item 11.C 

• Insurance 
• Fuel 
• Equipment maintenance and supplies (laptops, printers) 
• Books and materials 
• Internet 

 
Logistical concerns 

• Indoor parking 
• Locations with both adequate parking and allow for connection to electrical 

outlets 
• Adequate staffing/adequate CDL license coupled with public service skills 

 
 
 



Agenda Item 11.B 

 
 
 
To:   Library Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Karen Danczak Lyons, Executive Director 
 
Subject:  Proposed Change to Non-Resident Card Fee 
 
Date:   April 20, 2022 
 
 
The State of Illinois requires the Library Board to “annually take action to decide 
whether to issue non-resident library cards during the ensuing 12 months. At that time, 
the non-resident library card fee formula and fee, if applicable, to be used will be 
determined and adopted.” 
 
The Illinois State Library has a recommended formula for calculating a library 
nonresident fee. The Library income from local property tax sources or its equivalent is 
divided by the population to yield the per capita library property tax support. This 
amount is then multiplied by the average number of persons per household (per the 
2020 census) to produce the recommended non-resident fee of 222.81. Our 
nonresident fee must at least equal this amount in order for the Library to be eligible for 
the State Per Capita Grant. 
 
A Local Property Tax Support: $7,252,200 
B Population: 78,110 
C A divided by B: $92.84 
D Average number of people per household: 2.40 
E NR Fee = C * D: $222.81 
 
All of the territory surrounding Evanston is served by tax supported public libraries, so 
we have a relatively small number of people who purchase non-resident cards. We 
average 6 active non-resident card users per year. Most are purchased by Chicago 
residents who wish to check out more than 50 items per visit to the Library and access 
to our e-resources. The Library anticipates higher demand now that Robert Crown is 
open. Our current non-resident card fee is $219.00. 
 
Recommendation:  
Staff recommends Board approval of increasing the non-resident 
library card fee from 219.00 to 222.81 per year effective May 1st, 2022 
 

 

Memorandum 


	1 - Cover Page
	2 - Remote Access to Library Board Meeting
	3 - Library-agenda 20220420
	4 - library-minutes 20220316 draft
	5 - Memo to Library Board - Bills List  20210413
	6 - Library Bills List 20220315
	7 - Memo to Board - NewsBank contract to digitize local historical newspapers
	8 - Why digitize Evanston’s newspaper archives
	9 - EPL Newspaper Digitization - Northwestern Libraries
	10 - EPL Newspaper Digitization - Shorefront
	11 - EPL Newspaper Digitization Letter - Diane and Jesse Collins
	12 - Racial Equity Task Force Meeting Minutes 20220308
	13 - Library Director’s Report 20220413
	14 - Memo to Board - Administrative Update April 2022.docx
	15 - Budget Performance Report
	16 - Portfolio Balance 20220331
	17 - Memo to Board - Approval of Main Library Ventilation Fan Upgrade CIP 22-07
	18 - Voris Mechanical Inc Proposal
	19 - Voris Mechanical Inc Pricing Bid
	20 - Memo to Board - Book and Technology Mobile
	21 - Memo to Board - Proposed Change to Non-Resident Card Fee

